
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Environment Select Committee 

Place: Council Chamber - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 
8JN 
 

Date: Tuesday 9 November 2021 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Stuart Figini, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718221 or email 
stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Jerry Kunkler (Chair) 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Tony Jackson 
Cllr Mel Jacob 
Cllr Dr Brian Mathew 
Cllr Charles McGrath 
Cllr Ian McLennan 

Cllr Dr Nick Murry 
Cllr Bill Parks 
Cllr Rich Rogers 
Cllr Iain Wallis 
Cllr James Sheppard 
Cllr Derek Walters 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Mark Connolly 
Cllr Brian Dalton 
Cllr Andrew Davis 
Cllr Matthew Dean 
Cllr Nick Errington 
Cllr Ross Henning 

 

  
 

Cllr Jon Hubbard 
Cllr Stewart Palmen 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr Tom Rounds 
Cllr Tony Trotman 

 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for an online meeting you are consenting that you 
will be recorded presenting this, or this may be presented by an officer during the 
meeting and will be available on the public record. The meeting may also be recorded 
by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 PART I  

 Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the Environment  Select Committee meeting 
held on 7 September 2021. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. To ensure 
Wiltshire Council COVID-19 public health guidance is adhered to, a capacity 
limit for public attendance at this meeting will be in place. You must contact the 
officer named on this agenda no later than 5pm on Friday 5 November 2021 if 
you wish to attend this meeting. Places will be allocated on a first come first 
served basis and all requests may not be accommodated if there is high 
demand. 
 
Statements 
Members of the public who wish to submit a statement in relation to an item on 
this agenda should submit this electronically to the officer named on this agenda 
no later than 5pm on Friday 5 November 2021. Up to 3 speakers are permitted 
to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. Please contact the officer 
named on the front of the agenda for any further clarification 
 
Questions  
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Tuesday 2 November 2021 in order to be guaranteed of a written 
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no 
later than 5pm on Thursday 4 November 2021. Please contact the officer named 
on the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without 
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 



 

Page 4 

 

 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   Leisure In-Sourcing  

 As resolved at the Environment Select Committee meeting on 14 July 2021 the 
committee is to receive an update on the leisure facilities in-sourcing. 

7   Library Services  

 The Select Committee to receive an update on the library service post-
pandemic. 

8   Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group Update (Pages 11 - 22) 

 To receive an update from the Task Group on its work since September 2021. 

9   Forward Work Programme (Pages 23 - 30) 

 To note and receive updates on the progress of items on the forward work 
programme. 
 
Under the revised Overview and Scrutiny (OS) arrangements there is now a 
single OS work programme controlled by the OS Management Committee, 
linked to priorities in the Business Plan.  
 
Therefore it should be noted that, whilst any matters added by Members are 
welcome, they will be referred to the OS Management Committee for approval 
before formal inclusion in the work programme for the Environment Select 
Committee. 
 
A copy of the Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme for the 
Environment Select Committee is attached for reference.  
 

10   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter 
of urgency. 

11   Date of Next Meeting  

 To confirm the date of the next scheduled meeting as 12 January 2022 starting 
at 2.30pm. 



 
 
 

 
 
Environment Select Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 7 
SEPTEMBER 2021 AT ONLINE MEETING. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Jerry Kunkler (Chair), Cllr Bob Jones MBE (Vice-Chair), Cllr Paul Sample JP, 
Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Mel Jacob, Cllr Dr Brian Mathew, Cllr Charles McGrath, 
Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Dr Nick Murry, Cllr Bill Parks, Cllr Rich Rogers and 
Cllr James Sheppard 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Dr Mark McClelland and Cllr Graham 
Wright 
  
  

 
47 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Ian Wallis. 
 

48 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
The minutes of the Environment Select Committee meetings held on 15 
June 2021 and 14 July 2021 were approved and would be signed at a 
future meeting. 
 

49 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

50 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that In July 2021, Full Council approved the following 

changes to this Committee’s membership: 

 

 Cllr Mary Webb and Cllr Liz Alstrom were removed from the 

Committee’s membership and replaced by Cllr James Sheppard and 

Cllr Mel Jacobs.  

 

The Chairman thanked Cllr Webb and Cllr Alstrom for their contribution to this 

committee’s work and welcomed Cllr Sheppard and Cllr Jacobs to the 

Committee. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
51 Public Participation 

 

The Chairman explained the rules of public participation and acknowledged a 

request to speak had been received from Colin Gale, on behalf of the Pewsey 

Community Area Partnership, in relation to the Future Bus Strategy report being 

considered later in the agenda. 

 

The Chairman confirmed that the question would be deferred until the agenda 

item was being considered by the Select Committee. 

 
 

52 Future Bus Strategy - Connected Wiltshire 
 
The Select Committee considered a report of Jess Gibbons, Director for 
Communities and Neighbourhood Services which provided detail about a 
National Bus Strategy for England, and associated funding, aimed at improving 
and increasing bus usage. 
 
The Select Committee receive a request from Colin Gale, on behalf of the 
Pewsey Community Area Partnership, to speak on the Strategy.  The Chairman 
welcomed Colin to the meeting and asked him to speak. The Select Committee 
noted that PCAP welcomed the restoration of the Pewsey area bus service. 
Their main concern centred around the £1.2m funding available and the 
potential for limited improvements to the service, and a  request for detail 
surrounding the allocation of costs of the call centre. Cllr Dr Mark McClelland, 
Cabinet Member for Transport, Waste, Street Scene and Flooding and James 
Salter, Head of Passenger Transport confirmed that additional funding was 
available and that it was the intention of the proposals that the bus operator 
would be responsible for the costs of the call centre. 
 
Cllr Dr Mark McClelland introduced the report and explained that the Strategy 
for England is a central government policy aimed at improving and increasing 
bus usage. It required Local Transport Authorities to work in legal partnership 
with local bus operators to achieve this growth. It was noted that the Council 
had successfully bid for £1.2m to enhance the demand responsive bus network 
in the Pewsey Vale. 
 
Cllr Dr Mark McClelland and Head of Passenger Transport responded to a 

number of questions and comments from the Select Committee which included 

the following areas: 

 The use of electric buses to achieve the key objective of carbon 
reduction. It was noted that the larger bus companies had committed to 
coming on board with the use of electric buses in the future.  Long term 
plans were emerging, and a number of bus groups had committed to not 
purchasing diesel powered buses in the future. One challenge included 
the distances travelled by electric buses, especially in Wiltshire and its 
rural landscape.   

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Potential for initial free bus travel to encourage greater use of the 

service. The Select Committee noted that this would be included in the 

marketing and ticketing of the service.  

 Possible issues with the early termination of the of the Rural Mobility 

Fund contract. It was noted that the current contract contained a 3-month 

termination clause which the current provider had accepted. 

 The Rural Mobility Fund was a hybrid model and a long term strategy.  

Fares and timetabling were dependant on the needs of the community. 

 The use of alternative vehicles to buses in more rural areas, for instance 

taxis and minibuses, to meet transport needs. Flexible approaches would 

need to be considered further although some schemes were currently in 

operation, for instance, a route from West Ashton into Trowbridge.  

 Park and Ride Schemes in Salisbury would be reviewed alongside the 

Parking Strategy. 

 Use of empty sites as transport hubs to include EV charging stations. It 

was noted that a joined-up approach was necessary for all modes of 

transport and Cabinet would be considering the Council’s EV Charging 

Strategy in October 2021. 

 There was a decline in the number of bus passengers of 1%-2% year on 

year.   

 
Resolved: To note: 

 

1. the intention for Cabinet to agree the Subsidised Bus Service 
Fund be committed as defined in the table in paragraph 21. 
 

2. the progress on the Rural Mobility Fund (RMF) project and that a 
further progress report will be submitted in the future. 
 

3. the emerging ambitions outlined in the Wiltshire Bus Service 
Improvement Plan (BSIP), which will form the backbone of our 
future Bus strategy – Connected Wiltshire – and is to be 
submitted to the Department for Transport by 31 October. 

 
 

53 Community Area Transport Groups (CATG) Review 
 
The Select Committee received a report of the Director of Highways and Waste 

which reviewed the operation of the Community Area Transport Groups (CATG) 

that have now been operating since 2011. 

 

The Chairman and Cllr Dr Mark McClelland, Cabinet Member for Transport, 

Waste, Street Scene and Flooding, suggested that as the data provided in the 

report related to information gathered in January 2020, prior to COVID and the 

election of new Councillors and Cabinet, that the consultation exercise should 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

be repeated in order for the Select Committee to be satisfied that consideration 

was being given to the most accurate data possible. 

 

In supporting the above proposal, the Select Committee also suggested that the 

report could include how CATG funding links into the draft Business Plan, 

whether CATG schemes could give an emphasis on carbon neutral delivery, 

consideration to an increase in CATG funding, and the potential for CIL funds to 

be included in the CATG budget.  

 

Resolved: 

To note the information provided and to receive a more up-to-date report 

at a future meeting of the Select Committee. 

 
54 Wiltshire Council Draft Business Plan 2021-31 

 
The Select Committee received a verbal update on the Council’s draft Business 
Plan 2021-2031 from Cllr Richard Clewer, Leader of the Council, and Cabinet 
Member for MCI, Economic Development, Heritage, Arts, Tourism, and Health 
& Wellbeing. 
 
Cllr Clewer reported that the draft Business Plan was in the process of 
preparing the plan and will be available for consideration by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee on 21 September 2021. The draft Business 
Plan will contain the priorities of the administration in relative detail, with 
delivery plans updated accordingly, all backed up with measurable plans which 
will be monitored on a regular basis. The Draft Business Plan will then be 
considered by Cabinet on 27 September 2021 and Full Council on 19 October 
2021. 
 
The Select Committee noted that arrangements could be made for an informal 
meeting to consider the draft Business Plan further if needed. 
 
Resolved: 

 
To note the update on the Business Plan development process and the 
timescale for Overview and Scrutiny’s input. 
 

55 Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group 
 
The Select Committee received a report from the Senior Scrutiny Officer, Simon 

Bennett, which provided an update of the activities of the Global Warming & 

Climate Emergency Task Group since May 2021. 

 

The Chairman welcomed Cllr Graham Wright, Chairman of the Task Group, 

who introduced the report.  

 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Wright commented on the Task Group’s new membership agreed in July 

2021, the 5 priorities, including the Local Plan Review, the work being 

undertaken alongside, and support offered to the Select Committee in achieving 

its priorities and working with all Councillors especially the Area Board Leads on 

climate change. Cllr Wright responded to a number of questions and comments 

from the Select Committee which included the following areas: 

 

 The influence of the Task Group on future Local Plan strategy.  It was 

noted that the Task Group’s Terms of Reference allowed them to 

develop recommendations for other Committees to approve and 

implement.  Discussions about influencing the Local Plan would be held 

outside of this meeting. 

 The Environment Select Committee would be asked to consider and 

approve any recommendations from the Task Group and ensure their 

implementation through the normal Committee process. 

 Ensuring competing strategies link up with the overall aims of the Council 

in relation to climate change. Cllr Wright confirmed that the Task Group 

worked very closely with the Climate Team and reassured the Select 

Committee of the links between the Climate Strategy and other Council 

Strategies including the Blue and Green, and the Local Plan. 

 Details about a strategy for walking and cycling would be discussed after 

the Select Committee meeting. 

 The Task Group would be considering the connection between business 

and industry and farming in Wiltshire. 

 

The Select Committee also received an update from Cllr Richard Clewer, 
Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for MCI, Economic Development, 
Heritage, Arts, Tourism, and Health & Wellbeing, and Cllr Botterill, Cabinet 
Member for Development Management, Strategic Planning and Climate 
Change. Members were reminded that 75% of Wiltshire residents lived in a 
defined rural area with 50% living in villages. This demographic provided 
challenges when considering the modes of transport relevant to these areas. 
The Leader acknowledged that farming was an important element which was 
being driven nationally. Long term sustainable plans were expected from the 
government to enable Wiltshire to decarbonise, alongside the provision of 
appropriate assistance. 
 

Resolved:  

 

1. To note the update on Global Warming & Climate Emergency 

Task Group activity provided. 

 

2. To note that the following councillors have been appointed to 

the Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group: 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

 Cllr Clare Cape 

 Cllr Sarah Gibson  

 Cllr Tony Jackson 

 Cllr Jacqui Lay 

 Cllr Brian Mathew 

 Cllr Nick Murry 

 Cllr David Vigar 

 Cllr Ian Wallis 

 Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman) 

 
56 Forward Work Programme 

 
The Select Committee considered its Forward Work Programme.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Programme. 
 

57 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

58 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Environment Select Committee will take place at 
10:30pm on Tuesday 9 November 2021.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.15 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Stuart Figini of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718221, e-mail stuart.figini@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line ((01225) 713114 or email 

communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 10

mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk


Wiltshire Council 
 
Environment Select Committee 
 
9 November 2021 
 
 
 

Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group Update 
 
 
Purpose 
 

1. To update the Environment Select Committee on the work of the Global 
Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group since September 2021. 

 
Background 
 

2. The Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group (GWCE) is a task 
group reporting to the Environment Select Committee. The task group’s terms 
of reference were endorsed by the Select Committee on 3 September 2019. 
 

3. The task group has produced two reports with recommendations: 

• Energy and Transport & Air quality (29 September 2020) 

• Planning (13 January 2021) 
 

4. At its meeting on 15 June 2021 the Select Committee approved the continuation 
of the task group. 
 

5. The task group’s last update to the Select Committee was on 7 September 
2021. 

 
Membership 
 

6. The membership of the task group from July 2021 is as follows:  
 

Cllr Clare Cape 
Cllr Sarah Gibson 
Cllr Tony Jackson 
Cllr Jacqui Lay 
Cllr Brian Mathew 
Cllr Nick Murry 
Cllr David Vigar 
Cllr Ian Wallis 
Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman) 

  

Page 11

Agenda Item 8

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1125&MId=13786&Ver=4
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1125&MId=13786&Ver=4


Terms of Reference: 
 

7. The task group adopted its terms of reference in September 2019.  
 

8. The Select Committee agreeing to continue the task group following local 
government elections in May 2021 prompted a review of its terms of reference, 
two year on from their adoption, to better reflect agreed work priorities. 

 
9. The task group has drafted new terms of reference, see below: 

 
i. To help shape and influence the development of Wiltshire Council’s 

programme (in all relevant areas) for meeting its objective of making 
Wiltshire Council carbon neutral and seeking to make the county of Wiltshire 
carbon neutral by 2030 (excluding the geographical area administered by 
Swindon Borough Council).  
 

ii. To scrutinise the delivery of this objective through the Climate Strategy 
(2022-2027) and its delivery plans, as well as key plans, policies, and 
programmes, such as the Local Plan, Local Transport Plan and Green and 
Blue Infrastructure Strategy. Including the way in which the Council is 
measuring progress and how it is performing and reporting against 
baselines.  
 

iii. To provide recommendations on other aspects of decarbonising the county 
including partnership working and community-led approaches as well as 
acting as a national role model. 

 
Task Group name 
 

10. Whilst reviewing the terms of reference the Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group also discussed the task group name.  
 

11. The term global warming, now superseded by the term global heating, is 
considered to be implicit in the climate emergency.  
 

12. Given the task group arose from a motion to full Council concerning the climate 
emergency, it is proposed that the name of the task group be changed to the 
Climate Emergency Task Group. 

 
Response to the draft Climate Strategy 2022-2027 
 

13. In September 2021 the council began a consultation on a climate strategy. The 
task group responded to the consultation and in summary suggested that the 
Climate Strategy 2022-2027 should: 
 

• Reflect the urgency of the challenge and speed up delivery; 
 

• Be persuasive about the need to tackle the climate emergency; 
 

Page 12



• Be clear on what’s required of the Council’s other policies, plans and 
programmes; 

 

• Show how we will be held to account by including milestones and targets; 
 

• Set out the limits to action and how current obstacles can be potentially 
overcome; 

 

• Strengthen the influence and partnership sections to better reflect the 
council’s leadership, communications, engagement, advocacy and 
education role; 
 

• Be prepared to innovate and take the lead – regionally and nationally. 
 

14. The full response is set out in Appendix 1. 
 
Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Plan 2021-2024 
 

15. The task group received a briefing regarding the plan Electric Vehicle Charging 
Infrastructure Plan 2021-2024 on 8 October 2021 to which members of the 
select committee were invited. The Plan was considered by Cabinet on 12 
October 2021. 

 
16. The task group welcomed the Plan, recognising that it was addressing 

immediate challenges; in particular updating and repairing the council’s current 
EV charging infrastructure but also preparing for a more detailed strategy, 
which will be part of the Local Transport Plan. 
 

17. The task group considered there are ‘quick wins’ available to the council, most 
of which the task group recommended in its first report on Energy, Transport 
and Air Quality endorsed by OSMC on 29 September 2020. For example, the 
council should: 
 

• Prioritise the phasing out of diesel and petrol vehicles in its own fleet 
 

• Work with taxi firms and drivers to help them transition to electric taxis, 
including possible incentivisation through licencing and the installation 
of rapid chargers for taxi ranks 

 

• Promote EV use among residents including by updating the guidance 
on car clubs on the Connecting Wiltshire web pages to encourage EV-
specific clubs  

 
18. The task group would like to see the council acting to support residents in going 

electric in all possible ways – through explanation, information, support for EV 
clubs and in leading by example. 

 
Draft forward work plan 
 

Page 13

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1122&MId=13596&Ver=4


19. Based upon the draft terms of reference a draft work plan is attached at 
Appendix 2. 

 
Proposals 
 

1. To note the update on the Task Group activity provided. 
 

2. To endorse the task group’s new terms of reference, as set out at 
paragraph 9. 

 
3. To endorse changing the task group’s name to the Climate Emergency 

Task Group. 
 

4. To note the task group’s draft forward work plan. 
 
 

 
Report author:  Simon Bennet, Senior Scrutiny Officer, T: 01225 718709,  
E: simon.bennett@wiltshire.gov.uk  
  

Page 14

mailto:simon.bennett@wiltshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1 – Response to the Climate Strategy Consultation 
 
Wiltshire Council 
 
Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group 
 
14 October 2021 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

Response to the draft Climate Strategy 2022-2027 
 
The council’s Global Warming & Climate Emergency task group welcomes the 
opportunity to comment on Wiltshire’s draft Climate Strategy 2022-2027. It met on 24 
September to consider the document and in summary the task group agreed that the 
strategy should: 
 

• Reflect the urgency of the challenge and speed up delivery; 

• Be persuasive about the need to tackle the climate emergency; 

• Be clear on what’s required of the Council’s other policies, plans and 
programmes; 

• Show how we will be held to account by including milestones and targets; 

• Set out the limits to action and how current obstacles can be potentially 
overcome; 

• Strengthen the influence and partnership sections to better reflect the council’s 
leadership, communications, engagement, advocacy and education role; 

• Be prepared to innovate and take the lead – regionally and nationally. 
 
These are set out in more detail below. 
 
The task group saw early drafts of the strategy and it is clear that many of the points 
we raised were taken on board. It is good to see a strong acknowledgement of the 
climate crisis not only from the council but from its Leader.  
 
The task group is however disappointed that many of the recommendations made in 
its two reports have not been taken on board, in spite of the evidence of their efficacy 
elsewhere. We are also disappointed that critical issues such as sustainable spatial 
planning, net zero development, road building and decarbonisation of the transport 
system have been left for other parts of the council (traditionally large emitters) to 
resolve. There are also complete omissions in some significant areas, such as any 
mention of the role of the council’s own farms (some at risk of being sold for 
development) in sustainable local food production, carbon capture and renewable 
energy generation (page 24). 
 
Through its own words and actions the council has shown that it is serious about 
reducing its own emissions (i.e. those associated with its own operations and estate). 
However, the task group also regards the council’s commitment to seek to make the 
county (less Swindon Borough) carbon neutral by 2030, as much more challenging 
and crucial in terms of what this strategy must set out to achieve. 
 

Page 15



This strategy though is an important step and the task group stands ready to support 
its further development. 
 
The climate emergency 
 
Emergency is not a word that is used frivolously by local authorities, but the council 
did agree, in February 2019, that there was a climate emergency, which it needed to 
take action to address. That was over two and a half years ago.  
 
Preventing dangerous climate change, widely acknowledged as keeping global 
temperature rise to below 1.5 degrees centigrade1, is seriously time constrained and 
will require deep and rapid cuts in emissions.  The draft Climate Strategy lacks an 
overall commensurate sense of urgency that reflects the mounting concern within 
society and from young people in particular. Whilst the identification of ‘no regrets’ 
measures in the strategy is welcomed as a way of marking out measures that can be 
advanced immediately, the timeframe for the creation and delivery of a strategy is 
insufficiently ambitious. The detailed delivery plans may not be complete for 12-18 
months (2022/23) and would take even longer to implement. Decisions made in the 
meantime could lead to investments that lock in greenhouse gas emissions for years, 
even decades to come.  
 
More could also be made of early wins, which the draft includes, for example the 
retrofitting council homes to EPC (Energy Performance Certificate) B standard and 
installing electric vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure, through working with District 
Network Operators and private sector EV charging infrastructure firms. These 
initiatives are welcome but need to be less hesitant and much more pro-active. 
Delivery Plans should not now be put on hold simply to coincide with other statutory 
plans like the Local Plan and Local Transport Plan but should be quickly set in motion 
and reviewed regularly. 
 
Why are we addressing the climate emergency? 
 
Why we need to become zero carbon requires more explanation, as people may not 
fully understand or accept that there is an ‘emergency’, or one that affects Wiltshire. 
The strategy should clearly and honestly describe the nature of the threat and the way 
the council has chosen to respond. This will ultimately enhance the democratic 
mandate that will help the council in taking the necessary action. In this respect, there 
are three messages that need to be conveyed. 
 
Firstly, that the scientific evidence that we are facing an unprecedented crisis, more 
substantial and far reaching than the covid pandemic, for example, is incontrovertible, 
as is the evidence of how close we are to exceeding safe limits. This links to the recent 
IPCC Sixth Assessment Report (AR6) which predicts that the world will reach or pass 
1.5C between 2030 and 2035 and is likely to exceed 2C between the early 2040s or 
50s. And that every fraction of a degree of warming above 1.5C leads to substantially 
more dangerous and costly impacts. These facts need to be communicated in ways 
that people can more easily relate to. 

 
1 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change “Special report on the impacts of global warming 

of 1.5 °C” October 2018. Available at: https://www.ipcc.ch/sr15/  

Page 16

https://www.ipcc.ch/sr15/


 
Secondly, that people are already dying and suffering as a result of the early impacts 
of climate change - floods, fires, droughts, heatwaves and diseases. Extreme weather 
has caused 11,000 disasters and two million deaths in the last 50 years.2 Wiltshire is 
also already seeing impacts – warmer wetter winters and hotter drier summers and 
people have died in Britain as a result of heatwaves.3 The flooding that has affected 
many homes in the south west is expected to get worse, as is the increase in heat 
related deaths. Additionally, it needs to be communicated that the impacts in other 
parts of the world will directly and indirectly affect live here in Wiltshire. Water 
shortages, food shortages, mass migrations, increased conflict will all impact on the 
security and quality of our lives right here in Wiltshire. 
 
Thirdly, our legacy of industries, that Britain’s innovation created – such as iron, steel, 
cars, gas and electricity – have made our lives much better but have led to carbon 
emissions that warm the world and are now creating enormous risks for future 
generations. We have a responsibility to show the way in solving the global problem. 
The UK is a leader in the global effort, and Wiltshire needs to be a leader within the 
UK.  
 
There are lots of ways we could help bring these messages to life and achieve a 
community that is better informed, more engaged and more motivated to take action. 
This could include ‘twinning’ with a region or part of a developing country that is in the 
frontline of climate change impacts. The contact would be light touch and virtual but 
such an initiative would be an opportunity for councillors, officers, schools and 
community groups to engage with, learn from and support people on the other side of 
the world and understand how they are affected. Schools in Oxfordshire have done 
this, as have the German city of Bonn, but Wiltshire would be the first council to do so.  
 
Internal strategic alignment and influence 
 
The draft climate strategy has many laudable objectives. However, like many a 
previous environmental plan, it will not achieve much unless higher level strategies, 
plans, policies and programmes are aligned with it. If the Local Plan, for example, 
continues its historical approach to large scale, car dependent development, with 
policies that don’t require well insulted homes, onsite renewable energy generation 
and walking and cycling infrastructure, the good intentions of the Climate Strategy will 
become irrelevant. Similarly, if road building continues to promote car dependency and 
investment in EV charging infrastructure (e.g., for on street charging) is not 
forthcoming. Simply referring to ‘developing a new Wiltshire Local Transport Plan and 
Local Plan’ or ‘encouraging town councils to support existing town cycle networks’ 
(page 20) does not inspire confidence that these plans will be in any way ‘joined up’. 
 
The task group is aware that the previous Climate Change Strategy produced in 2010 
aimed to have an action plan in place by the end of 2012 but came to very little, despite 
declaring that the council needed to act urgently. The agenda was then seemingly 
abandoned from 2015 until the Climate Emergency was declared in 2019, whilst 

 
2 https://public.wmo.int/en/media/press-release/weather-related-disasters-increase-over-past-50-
years-causing-more-damage-fewer  
3 https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2212096321000140  

Page 17

https://www.oxfordmail.co.uk/news/19048950.schools-twin-south-india-protect-environment/
https://public.wmo.int/en/media/press-release/weather-related-disasters-increase-over-past-50-years-causing-more-damage-fewer
https://public.wmo.int/en/media/press-release/weather-related-disasters-increase-over-past-50-years-causing-more-damage-fewer
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2212096321000140


emissions from commercial buildings, housing and transport continued to rise. This 
must not be allowed to happen again.  
 
Delivery themes 
 
The workstreams within the council’s spheres of control and influence, represent a 
well framed set of areas for action. Some are nicely worked up, such as on the 
transport areas of focus (page 20). However, detail of how these will be achieved is 
lacking. Hopefully these will be broken down further into specific sub-strategies such 
as for electric vehicles (EVs), buses, cycling and walking and so on. Each with a plan 
that encourages all available ideas and expertise to be contributed and a light touch 
governance arrangement to drive progress. However, the lack of detail is a significant 
weakness, which needs to be addressed (see below). 
 
The task group would suggest a greater emphasis upon community leadership and 
developing programmes to help and encourage residents, businesses, developers 
and others to cut their emissions.  
 
Objectives, milestones, targets 
 
Whilst recognising the desire to create a concise and readable document, the strategy 
must include a roadmap whereby the steps identified will lead to a zero carbon 
Wiltshire by 2030. Without these the draft can be characterised as a position statement 
and not a true strategy. As the Wiltshire Climate Alliance note, there is a ‘lack of 
measurable objectives, and associated milestones and proposed investments’. The 
target of net zero emissions by 2030 is clear, as is the baseline for county-wide 
emissions (page 12) but it is important to set milestone targets on the road to 2030. 
There is no way currently to objectively measure our progress – without these it is not 
clear we will achieve our ultimate aim and we also cannot be held to account. 
 
Limits to action 
 
We need to be realistic and the overall strategy should reflect the reality of the limits 
of the council’s influence. The Climate Change Committee (CCC) states that ‘Local 
authorities have powers or influence over roughly a third of emissions in their local 
areas.’4 It adds that while over 300 local authorities have declared climate 
emergencies, ‘the levers available to them are unlikely to be sufficient to deliver their 
net zero ambitions, due to gaps in powers, policy and funding barriers, and a lack of 
capacity and skills at a local level’. The CCC’s conclusion is that these capacity deficits 
create a need for ‘Government, regional agencies and local authorities to work 
seamlessly together.’  
 
The task group accepts that there are limits to how the council can act but this should 
also be an impetus to re-think, innovate and collaborate to maximise its impact, 
particularly as Wiltshire’s overall aim, to be carbon neutral by 2030, does not 
completely align with those of central government whose target is 2050. Given the 
urgency outlined in the early part of this response, the task group believes the council 
must act decisively, in spite of the government’s lack of vision. It believes that the 

 
4 https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/local-authorities-and-the-sixth-carbon-budget/  

Page 18

https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/local-authorities-and-the-sixth-carbon-budget/


council can and must drive change beyond the statutory levers presently available to 
them. This may require taking some risks in the longer-term interests of its residents, 
as well as re-prioritising budgets and investment. It is noticeable that currently the 
strategy only references accessing additional government funding, not how the 
council’s own budgets might be aligned with this agenda – more financial transparency 
would be welcome.  
 
It should also include working through local government representative bodies to 
influence national government and send a clear message about what is needed to 
affect the CCC’s recommendations. The task group therefore welcomes the council’s 
involvement in the Countryside Climate Network. 
 
Finally, it should also do this through leadership, communications, engagement, 
advocacy and education. In other words, if much of what needs to be done cannot be 
done through the exercise of the council’s own powers, then communication, 
education, persuasion and advocacy should become much more central parts of any 
strategy.  
 
Leadership, communications, engagement, advocacy and education 
 
While the council may have limited powers, it can increase its influence by being a 
leader and role model for the community. This can range from advice for residents on 
buying EVs, through campaigns to encourage walking and cycling, to setting 
standards for low or zero carbon homes (as some parish councils are already doing 
through their Neighbourhood Plans). Wiltshire Council may not be able to mandate 
any of these, but it can act through communication and education to make them better 
understood and more popular – and hence to increase their social acceptability and 
desirability. For example, the council could give awards to developers for Wiltshire’s 
greenest new homes. The sections of the strategy that set out how we will use our 
influence and partnership should have more immediate actions.  
 
The strategy does seem to recognise this in part, for example, the graphic of a low-
carbon home (page 16) suggests a series of low carbon design concepts, mostly 
(currently) unenforceable except perhaps in the small number of new council-built 
homes. This does not mean we should scrap this aspiration. It means that we re-
double efforts to create and deliver a roadmap of communication and persuasion to 
make all of Wiltshire’s homes, new and old, reach that ideal.  
 
In this respect, the council should review its existing powers to identify where and how 
it could maximise their use to extract the most benefit and value.   
 
External alignment and taking the lead 
 
It is also important – as the CCC point out – to avoid a fragmented approach and to 
align what the council is doing with the actions of central government, businesses and 
other agencies where possible. The council has to know what actions the government 
and other councils are taking and strive to identify and emulate best practice. This has 
two strands – first, making sure Wiltshire attracts government funding and pilot 
projects and second, identifying, monitoring and learning from successful carbon 
reduction programmes.   

Page 19



 
In this area, we should have the ambition of making Wiltshire a test bed or early 
adopter of critical technologies – particularly heating homes. For power and light 
transport, the key medium to long term solutions are already established in the form 
of low-carbon electricity via solar and wind and the main challenge is to cut costs and 
increase capacity. However, residential heat (including cooking) is emerging as the 
toughest issue for the 2020s. There is a lack of clarity over whether heat pumps, 
hydrogen, electric heaters, microwave boilers or some other technology will prove the 
most efficient. Wiltshire can test the relative merits of these emerging solutions 
challenging and encouraging developers to demonstrate and lead in this area. The 
Council has missed recent opportunities in this regard (e.g., having an electric scooter 
trial scheme in Salisbury) and the Strategy should try to ensure this does not happen 
in future. 
 
In the short to medium term; while internal combustion engines still dominate road 
transport, it is imperative to encourage more bus services and active transport (walking 
and cycling). So can Wiltshire run projects to test, for example, the impact of a major 
ramp-up of bus services in a particular area or a campaign to promote walking to 
school or work? 
 
Concluding remarks 
 
Tackling the climate emergency means substantial changes are going to be required 
in the way the council operates, invests and sets the wider planning and policy 
landscape for the future. It also means that we all (i.e. Wiltshire residents) have to do 
things differently and the council has to take the lead in helping make that happen. 
Unfortunately, time is not on our side. We should have a strategy that gets us to zero 
carbon by 2030. However, without the necessary detail and delivery mechanisms, it is 
unclear whether this strategy will to get us to this target.  
 
Our approach therefore needs to be more urgent and less hesitant. We have to 
decisively move to becoming a carbon neutral council as quickly as possible and use 
all possible means to exert influence over cutting the county’s emissions and 
increasing carbon capture. This will require us to be more innovative and forward 
thinking than ever before. We will need to be much bolder about what we can do now 
and persuasive about what we need government to do. 
 
The task group realises that this is not an easy ask. We have made some progress, 
but a big challenge remains – the council has powers or influence over perhaps only 
a third of the county’s emissions. How are we going to close that gap and reduce the 
other two thirds of emissions by 2030? We need to show leadership but also increase 
our communications, engagement, advocacy and education. And we need to build the 
skills and capacity to do this. 
 
Many individuals and organisations want to and can help. The task group met and 
spoke to many of these when creating its two detailed reports. We hope that this 
consultation will begin to bring everyone together – at the very least around the high-
level objectives under the delivery themes. We also hope that the consultation 
responses will be taken on board and the council will work with increased urgency on 
preparing and implementing delivery plans, and on aligning all its other plans, policies 

Page 20



and programmes with this Strategy. With a concerted community effort and high levels 
of communication and engagement, Wiltshire could achieve the national leadership 
role to which it aspires.  
 
Cllr Graham Wright, Chairman of the Global Warming & Climate Emergency 
Task Group 
 

 
Report author:  Simon Bennet, Senior Scrutiny Officer, T: 01225 718709,  
E: simon.bennett@wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
  

Page 21

mailto:simon.bennett@wiltshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX 2 – Draft Forward Work Plan 
 
 

9 November 2021 
 

Environment Select Committee 

12 November 2021 Councillor Climate Working Group 
The Working Group (CCWG) has responsibility for 
ensuring that the work undertaken by officers, meets the 
2030 climate ambitions, as set by full council in 2019. 
(Cllr Wright only) 
 

22 November 2021 UN Climate Change Conference (Cop26) 
To consider the implications of the climate conference, 
the Government’s response and potential implications for 
the council. 
 

December 2021 (tbc) Climate Strategy 2022-2027 
Meeting to consider the responses from the consultation 
and next steps, including any specific topics for 
investigation. 
 

December 2021 (tbc) Green Blue Infrastructure Strategy 
Meeting to consider the consultation responses, 
amendments to the final strategy and next steps in terms 
of policies and programmes. 
 

12 January 2022 Environment Select Committee 
 

January 2022 (tbc) Local Plan Review 
Meeting when the next iteration of plan is published to 
discuss progress and future areas of investigation for 
the task group. 
 

 

Other areas for consideration: 

 

Corporate Business Plan 

Environment Bill  

Air Quality Strategy 2017-2024 

Household Waste Management Strategy 2017-2027 

 

Page 22



Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 1 of 7 

  
 
 

Environment Select Committee 
Forward Work Programme 

 
Last updated 1 November 2021  

 
 

Environment Select Committee - Current / Active Task Groups 
Task Group Start Date Final Report Expected 

Global Warming and Climate Emergency Task Group June 2019 On-going 

 
Environment Select Committee - Rapid Scrutiny 
Topic Details Date 

   

   

 
 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 9



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 2 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / Purpose of Report  Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 

 
 

12 Jan 2022 (tbc) Streetscene contract As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the 
transport and highways 
portfolio a report to be 
provided detailing the new 
Streetscene contract. 

Jessica Gibbons 
(Director - 
Neighbourhood 
and Community 
Services) 

Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

 
 

 

12 Jan 2022  Highways Annual Review of 
Service 

The committee to receive a 
report on the highways service 
and the Performance 
Management Framework. 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Dave Thomas 
 

 

12 Jan 2022  Fly-tipping As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the waste 
portfolio the committee to 
receive a report on fly-tipping 
and the council’s approach to 
enforcement. 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Peter White 
 

 

12 Jan 2022  Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group 

To receive an update from the 
task group regarding activity 
and its forward work plan 

  Simon Bennett 
 

 
 

P
age 24



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 3 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / purpose of report Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 
 

8 Mar 2022 (tbc) Grass Cutting Policy 
2022/23 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the 
transport and highways 
portfolio to provide a report 
outlining the policy for grass 
cutting in the following year. 

Jessica Gibbons 
(Director - 
Neighbourhood 
and Community 
Services) 

Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

 
 

 

8 Mar 2022  CATGs: 10 Years On As resolved at the ESC 
meeting on 7 September 2021 
the committee to receive an 
up-to-date report on 
Community Area Transport 
Group (CATG) 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Dave Thomas 
 

 

8 Mar 2022  Recycling As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the waste 
portfolio the committee to 
receive a report on developing 
the recycling service and 
improving recycling rates. 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Martin 
Litherland 
 

 

8 Mar 2022  Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group 

To receive an update from the 
task group regarding activity 
and its forward work plan 

  Simon Bennett 
 

 
 

P
age 25



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 4 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / purpose of report Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 
 

14 June 2022 Waste Management 
Strategy: Annual Review 

For the committee to receive 
an annual update on: 
• a review of changes to 
legislation and government 
policy 
• performance in 2020-21 
• an action plan for 2022-23 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Martin 
Litherland 
 

 

14 June 2022 (tbc) Bus Strategy / Bus 
Improvement Plan 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the 
transport and highways 
portfolio a report to be 
provided detailing the 
development of plans. 

Jessica Gibbons 
(Director - 
Neighbourhood 
and Community 
Services) 

Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

Jason Salter 
 

 

14 June 2022 Active travel As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 21 
September 2021 on the 
transport and highways 
portfolio to a report on 
programmes identified for 
potential Government funding 

Parvis Khansari Cllr Dr Mark 
McClelland 

 
 

 

14 June 2022 (tbc) ‘Heritage’ app; ‘What’s on in 
Wiltshire’ app 

September 2021 on the arts, 
heritage and tourism portfolio 
a report to be provided 
detailing the development of 
two tourism apps. 

Jessica Gibbons 
(Director - 
Neighbourhood 
and Community 
Services) 

  
 

 

P
age 26



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 5 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / purpose of report Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 
 

14 June 2022 Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group 

To receive an update from the 
task group regarding activity 
and its forward work plan 

  Simon Bennett 
 

 
 

13 July 2022 Libraries Development As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 24 
September 2021 on the leisure 
and libraries portfolio to 
provide a update on the 
development of the council’s 
library service. 

Jessica Gibbons 
(Director - 
Neighbourhood 
and Community 
Services) 

Cllr Ian Blair-
Pilling 

Louise Cary 
 

 

13 July 2022 Retrofitting of energy 
improvement works of 
current council housing 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 9 
September 2021 on the 
housing portfolio to provide a 
report on the scheme to make 
council homes more carbon 
neutral 

Simon Hendey 
(Director - 
Housing and 
Commercial) 

Cllr Phil Alford  
 

 

13 July 2022 Construction of zero carbon 
homes 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 9 
September 2021 on the 
housing portfolio to provide a 
report on the construction of 
zero carbon homes. 

Simon Hendey 
(Director - 
Housing and 
Commercial) 

Cllr Phil Alford  
 

 

P
age 27



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 6 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / purpose of report Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 
 

13 July 2022 Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group 

To receive an update from the 
task group regarding activity 
and its forward work plan 

  Simon Bennett 
 

 
 

8 Sep 2022 Homes 4 Wiltshire As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 9 
September 2021 on the 
housing portfolio to provide an 
update on Homes for Wiltshire. 

Emma Legg 
(Director - Adult 
Care, Access and 
Reablement) 

 Nicole Smith 
 

 

8 Sep 2022 Local Plan As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 14 
September 2021 on the spatial 
planning portfolio to receive 
updates when appropriate. 

 Cllr Nick Botterill Georgina 
Clampitt-Dix, 
Jean Marshall 
 

 

8 Sep 2022 Gypsy & Traveller Plan To receive the Gypsy and 
Traveller plan. 

 Cllr Nick Botterill Georgina 
Clampitt-Dix, 
Steve Stott 
 

 

8 Sep 2022 Global Warming & Climate 
Emergency task group 

To receive an update from the 
task group regarding activity 
and its forward work plan 

  Simon Bennett 
 

 
 

P
age 28



 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme - Last updated 1 November 2021 - Page 7 of 7 

Environment Select Committee – Forward Work Programme Last updated 1 November 2021  

Meeting Date Item Details / purpose of report Associate 
Director 

Responsible 
Cabinet Member 

Report Author 
/ Lead Officer 
 
 

8 Nov 2022 Private sector renewal 
strategy 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 9 
September 2021 on the 
housing portfolio to provide a 
report on the strategy. 

Emma Legg 
(Director - Adult 
Care, Access and 
Reablement) 

 Nicole Smith 
 

 

tbc Review of registered 
housing providers 

As discussed at the ESC-
Executive meeting on 7 
September 2021 on the 
housing portfolio. To receive a 
report on registered providers 
of affordable housing, shared 
ownership and rental housing. 

Sam Fox 
(Corporate 
Director - Place) 

Cllr Phil Alford Richard Walters 
 

 

P
age 29



P
age 30


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 Global Warming & Climate Emergency Task Group Update
	9 Forward Work Programme
	Plan


